
 

 
 

  

 

General Purposes Committee 
 

Wednesday 5 November 2014 at 6.00 pm 
Board Room 2 - Brent Civic Centre, Engineers Way, 
Wembley HA9 0FJ 
 
 
Membership: 
 
Members Substitute Members 
Councillors: Councillors: 
  

Butt (Chair) 
Moher (Vice-Chair) 
Denselow 
Hirani 
Kansagra 
McLennan 
Pavey 
Perrin 

Kabir, Khan, Mahmood, Mashari, McLeish, 
J Mitchell Murray and Nerva 
 
Councillors: 
 

Colwill and BM Patel   

 
 
For further information contact: Bryony Gibbs, Democratic Services Officer 
020 8937 1355, bryony.gibbs@brent.gov.uk 
 
For electronic copies of minutes, reports and agendas, and to be alerted when the 
minutes of this meeting have been published visit: 

democracy.brent.gov.uk 
 
 
The press and public are welcome to attend part of this 
meeting 
 

Public Document Pack



 

2 
 

Agenda 
 
Introductions, if appropriate. 
 
Apologies for absence and clarification of alternate members 
 

Item Page 
 

1 Declarations of personal and prejudicial interests  
 

 

 Members are invited to declare at this stage of the meeting, any relevant 
financial or other interest in the items on this agenda. 
 

 

 

2 Minutes of the previous meeting  1 - 4 
 

3 Matters arising   
 

4 Deputations (if any)   
 

5 Appointments to Sub-Committees / Outside Bodies   
 

6 Learning and development policy  
 

5 - 14 

 This report provides details of the proposed new Learning and Development 
policy which will replace the current arrangements as part of the ongoing review 
of HR policies and procedures. The policy details the council’s position in 
respect of learning and development opportunities available to staff. 
 
 

 

 Wards Affected:  Contact Officer: Cara Davani, 
Director, HR 

 

 All Wards  Tel: 020 8937 1909  

   cara.davani@brent.gov.uk  
 

7 Any other urgent business  
 

 

 Notice of items to be raised under this heading must be given in writing 
to the Democratic Services Manager or his representative before the 
meeting in accordance with Standing Order 64. 
 

 

 



 

3 
 

 

8 Exclusion of press and public  
 

 

 The press and public will be excluded from the remainder of the meeting 
as the following report contains categories of exempt information as 
specified in Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act, 1972, namely:  
 

1. ‘Information relating to any individual’  
2. ‘Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.’  

 

 

 

9 Senior manager restructuring proposals  
 

15 - 28 

 This report outlines proposals for a further restructuring with two aims: 
refocusing the Council’s senior management and corporate centre to 
meet the substantial challenges the organisation must manage over the 
next period and inevitable reduction in staffing; further streamlining to 
deliver a £1.4 million saving in senior management costs. 
 

 

 Wards Affected:  Contact Officer: Christine Gilbert, 
Chief Executive 

 

 All Wards  Tel: 020 8937 1007  

   christine.gilbert@brent.gov.uk  
 
 
 

� Please remember to set your mobile phone to silent during the meeting. 
• The meeting room is accessible by lift and seats will be provided for 

members of the public. 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT 

 
MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE 

Thursday 17 July 2014 at 6.00 pm 
 
 

PRESENT: Councillor Butt (Chair), Councillor Moher (Vice Chair) and Councillors Hirani, 
McLennan, Moher and Perrin 

 
Also present: Councillor Mahmood 

 
Apologies for absence were received from: Councillors Denselow, Kansagra and Pavey 

 
 

1. Declarations of personal and prejudicial interests  
 
None declared.  
 

2. Election of Vice Chair  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
that Councillor Moher be elected Vice Chair for the municipal year. 
 

3. Deputations  
 
None. 
 

4. Minutes of the previous meeting held on 3 April 2014  
 
RESOLVED:- 
 
that the minutes of the previous meeting held on 3 April 2014 be approved as an 
accurate record of the meeting subject to Clause 9 (ii) delete ‘Leader’ and substitute 
therefor ‘Chief Executive’. 
 

5. Matters arising  
 
None. 
 

6. Political balance  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
(i)  that the size of sub-committees be noted; 
 
(ii) that the allocation of seats on sub-committees be as set out in Para 3.5 of 

the report from the Director of Legal and Procurement; 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



 
General Purposes Committee - 17 July 2014 

 
(iii) that chairs, vice chairs and members be appointed as follows: 
 

BRENT PENSION FUND SUB-COMMITTEE  
(6/1/0) 
 
CHOUDHARY 
CRANE (C) 
HYLTON 
W MITCHELL MURRAY 
SHAHZAD 
THOMAS 
 
Labour substitutes: CONNEELY, DALY, DIXON, DUFFY, ENIOLA, 
EZEAJUGHI, FARAH, FILSON, HARRISON, HECTOR, HODA-BENN, 
HOSSAIN 
 
Conservative vacancy 
 
NON-VOTING CO-OPTEES:  Ashok Patel 
    George Fraser  
 
SENIOR STAFF APPOINTMENTS SUB-COMMITTEE  
(4/1/0) 
BUTT (C) 
HIRANI 
MASHARI 
PAVEY 
 
Labour substitutes: DENSELOW, McLENNAN, MOHER, PERRIN 
 
Conservative vacancy 

 
STAFF APPEALS SUB-COMMITTEE   
(4/1/0) 
CONNEELY 
MARQUIS 
MILLER 
NERVA 
 
Labour substitutes: ALLIE, BRADLEY, CHOHAN, S CHOUDHARY, 
A CHOUDRY, COLACICCO, COLLIER, CRANE 
 
Brondesbury Park Conservative vacancy 
 
EMPLOYEES’ JOINT CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE  
(7/1/0) 
EZEAJUGHI 
KABIR 
MILLER 
W MITCHELL MURRAY 
PAVEY (C) 

Page 2



 
General Purposes Committee - 17 July 2014 

KRUPA SHETH  
STOPP 
 
Labour substitutes: ADEN, AGHA, AHMED, HYLTON, 
J MITCHELL MURRAY, NERVA, OLADAPO, M PATEL R PATEL, 
SHAHZAD, SOUTHWOOD, TATLER, THOMAS, VAN KALWALA 
 
 
TEACHERS’ JOINT CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE  
(7/1/0) 
ADEN 
BRADLEY 
FILSON 
HODA-BENN 
KELCHER 
NERVA (C) 
TATLER 
 
Labour substitutes: ALLIE, FARAH, HARRISON, HECTOR, HOSSAIN. 
HYLTON, JONES, KABIR, KHAN, LONG, McLEISH, MAHMOOD, 
MARQUIS, MILLER 
 
Vacancy 

 
 

7. Appointments to Sub-Committees/Consultative Committees/Outside Bodies  
 
It was noted that appointments were considered under the Political Balance report 
agreed earlier in the meeting. 
 

8. Any other urgent business  
 
None. 
 

9. Application by Tiberiu Andrei Michalcea for a scrap metal collectors licence 
pursuant to the provisions of the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013  
 
The committee met to consider an application for a scrap metal collections licence 
to collect scrap metal house to house. Yogini Patel (Regulatory Service Manager) 
outlined the role of the committee and the powers under the legislation and the 
reasons the application had come before members. Horatio Chance (Legal) 
advised that as the applicant was not legally represented efforts should be made to 
ensure fair process and to afford the applicant every opportunity to respond. 
 
The police representative PC Sam Lewis-Evans summarised contact with the 
applicant and his associates. 
 
The applicant was in attendance together with his father and sister to act as 
interpreter. The reasons behind the applicant’s application were outlined in 
particular the preference for the borough, that was no longer in contact with his 
previous associate and how he intended to run the business. 
 

Page 3



 
General Purposes Committee - 17 July 2014 

After hearing representations parties to the appeal left the meeting. 
 
Following deliberations the parties were invited into the meeting to hear the 
outcome. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
that the application for a scrap metal collection licence for Tiberiu Andrei Michalcea 
be refused. 
 

 
 
The meeting closed at 6.55 pm 
 
 
 
M BUTT 
Chair 
 

Page 4



 
Meeting 
Date  

Version no. 
Date  

 
 

  

 

 
General Purposes Committee 

5 November 2014  

Report from the Director of Human Resources 

For Action 
 

  
Wards affected: 

ALL 

  

Learning and Development Policy 

 
  
1.0 Summary 

 
This report provides details of the proposed new Learning and Development policy 
which will replace the current arrangements as part of the ongoing review of HR 
policies and procedures. The policy details the council’s position in respect of 
learning and development opportunities available to staff. 
 

 2.0 Recommendations 
 

2.1  The General Purposes Committee is asked to: 
 
a. Agree the new Learning & Development policy 
 
b. Authorise the HR Director in consultation with the Chief Executive and then 

consultation with the relevant trade unions, to make such other changes as may be 
necessary from time to time to the Learning & Development policy to ensure it 
remains ‘fit for purpose’. 

     
3.0 Detail 
 
3.1  The council regularly reviews its HR policy framework to align its policies to 

organisational objectives, business need, incorporate legislative changes and to 
reflect current modern HR practice. 

 
3.2  The council is committed to developing a highly skilled workforce as set out in the HR 

strategy and reflected in our commitment to achieve the Investors in People Gold 
Standard.  

 
 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 5



 
Meeting 
Date  

Version no. 
Date  

 
 

3.3 The new policy covers the following: 
 

• The council’s corporate learning and development offer; 
• Apprenticeships and Graduate recruitment; 
• Internships and short-term work experience opportunities; 
• Secondments, work shadowing and acting up arrangements; 
• Coaching and mentoring 
• Conference and seminar attendance  
 
The policy outlines the responsibilities of managers and employees in the application 
of this policy. 
 

3.4 Key changes include a consistent approach to work experience and internships, the 
latter of which must be paid. Given the budgetary pressures the council is facing, the 
council is no longer able to support funding for professional qualifications, although 
paid time off may be available in accordance with the council’s Time Off policy. 
Funding will still exist for specific initiatives, such as BAME Senior Management 
Development programmes.  

 
4.0 Financial Implications 
 
4.1 There are no specific financial implications other than those set out above.  
 
5.0 Legal Implications 
 
5.1 There are no specific legal implications. 
 
6.0 Diversity Implications 
 
6.1 The council’s comprehensive training offer is open to all its permanent employees, 

and all of whom have equal opportunity to develop their career within the council. 
The council will ensure that the policy is applied fairly to all permanent employees ad 
does not have a negative impact in relation to the council’s equality standards. 
 

7.0 Staffing/Accommodation Implications (if appropriate) 
 

7.1  The policy applies to all individuals employed by the council and does not apply to 
agency workers. 
 
Background Papers 
 
 
Contact Officers 
Cara Davani 
HR Director 
 

Page 6



Learning and Development Policy_Final 

 
 

 
 

  

 
 
Learning and Development Policy 
November 2014 
 
 

 
Human Resources 

Page 7



1 
 

Learning and Development Policy  
 
Contents 
 
1. Introduction ........................................................................................................ 2 
2. Our Approach ..................................................................................................... 2 
3. Policy statement ................................................................................................. 2 

3.1 Policy summary ................................................................................................... 2 
4. Learning and development policy and procedure ............................................... 3 

4.1 Corporate Learning and Development offer ......................................................... 3 
4.2 Financial support ................................................................................................. 3 
4.3 Apprentices and Graduate recruitment ................................................................ 3 
4.4 Internships and short term work experience opportunities ................................... 4 
4.5 Secondments ...................................................................................................... 4 
4.6 Acting up opportunities ........................................................................................ 5 
4.7 Work shadowing .................................................................................................. 5 
4.8 Coaching ............................................................................................................. 5 
4.9 Mentoring ............................................................................................................ 5 
4.10 Attending conferences and seminars .................................................................. 5 

5. Roles and responsibilities .................................................................................... 6 
5.1 Employees .......................................................................................................... 6 
5.2 Line managers .................................................................................................... 6 
5.3 Directors, Operational Directors and Heads of Service ........................................ 6 
5.4 Human Resources .............................................................................................. 6 

6. Further advice .................................................................................................... 6 
 
 
  

Page 8



2 
 

1. INTRODUCTION  
 
This document is designed to outline the council’s approach and responsibilities for learning 
and development. Learning and development covers any activity designed to help individuals 
become more effective at their work by improving, or updating their knowledge and skills.  
This includes secondments, workplace shadowing, attending conferences or seminars, 
networking, coaching and mentoring. 
 
2. OUR APPROACH  
 
The council is committed to developing a highly skilled workforce as set out in its HR 
Strategy.  This policy applies to all individuals employed by the council and does not apply to 
agency workers.  Our approach is to ensure an equitable allocation of the council’s resources 
with respect to investment in learning and development; an allocation that is in line with 
organisational priorities and will enable it to respond effectively to changing organisational 
context. 
 
The council recognises the need to support employees through learning and development to 
enable them to effectively perform their role and to provide high quality services to Brent’s 
residents.   
 
We will achieve this through:   

• using and adopting the principles of Investors in People; 
• building performance management skills across the council to ensure consistent 
practices; 

• reviewing the learning and development needs of each department annually through 
the Learning and Development Evaluation Framework. 

 
3. POLICY STATEMENT 
 
3.1 Policy summary 
 
This policy provides employees and line managers with the principles that support the 
council’s  approach to learning and development. 
 

1. The council’s comprehensive training offer is open to all its permanent 
employees and includes in-house courses and externally provided training.   
 

2. Staff are expected to keep abreast of developments within their own area through 
continuous professional development (CPD); using the performance 
management process and one-to-one meetings to identify areas of improvement. 

 
3. The council is committed to ensuring all its employees have access to learning 

and development that supports both personal and professional development and 
improvements in service provision. 

 
4. Employees are expected to read, understand and comply with the Time Off 

Policy in relation to taking employment related educational leave. 
 
5. All employees have equal opportunity to develop their career within the council.  

 
 

 

 

Page 9



3 
 

4. LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT POLICY AND PROCEDURE 
 
The policy operates in conjunction with the Time Off Policy.  The council will ensure that the 
policy is applied fairly to all employees and does not have a negative impact in relation to the 
council’s equality standards. 
 
4.1 Corporate Learning and Development offer 
 
Brent Council recognises the importance of providing its employees with opportunities to 
develop and learn new skills that help them do their job well and provide high quality services 
to the community.  
 
The council delivers these opportunities through a mix of different methods including courses 
and workshops, e-learning, access to online resources and training within the role.  
  
The council’s corporate e-learning offering is available via The Learning Hub while all in-
class training is available to book via One Oracle self-service.   
 
The council has developed a framework to provide a more structured and systematic 
approach to the planning and evaluating of learning and development at a corporate and 
departmental level.  
 
This is completed through its Learning and Development Evaluation Framework that is used 
at team, departmental and corporate level.   
 
Each department is expected to produce an annual learning and development plan to 
address the specialist skills and knowledge specifically needed by the department in order to 
achieve departmental and team objectives. The Learning and Development Evaluation 
Framework sets out the key steps that managers should take in planning and evaluating the 
effectiveness of learning and development activities.  

 
4.2 Financial support  
 
The council is committed to supporting the learning and development needs of its employees 
at all levels, which includes providing financial support to cover short courses and seminars 
that are not part of the corporate offer.  The council is, however, no longer able to support 
funding qualifications training although paid time off may be available in accordance with the 
council’s Time Off Policy. The council will continue to fund qualification training associated 
with specific initiatives e.g. BAME senior management development programme, and for 
trainee-type positions e.g. National Graduate Development Programme and apprenticeship 
programmes etc.  
 
The council does not fund the cost of books, residential weekends, travel expenses or other 
costs associated with qualification training. These must be paid for by the staff member and 
are not reimbursable as expenses.  
 
Non qualification training relevant to a specific service should be funded at a local level.   
 
4.3 Apprentices and Graduate recruitment 
 
Apprentices 
 
Brent Council is committed to supporting the recruitment of apprentices as part of its 
commitment to influencing the quality of future employees by growing talent from within the 
council and creating opportunities and improving the lives of its residents.   

Page 10



4 
 

As part of this the council is committed to creating 100 apprenticeship roles by 2017. 

Graduates 
 
The council is committed to identifying graduates who have the potential to become senior 
managers and leaders within local government over a 10-year period.  As part of this 
commitment the council has joined the National Graduate Development Programme run by 
the LGA.   

The graduates are recruited to the council on a two-year, fixed-term contract and are 
required to complete placements in key areas such as policy, strategy, and front-line service.  
Graduates are assigned to requesting services on a six-month rotation.  
  
4.4 Internships and short term work experience opportunities 
 
The council is committed to providing a variety of paid and unpaid opportunities that help to 
raise the council’s profile within the community and provide individuals with an insight into the 
skills and attitudes required to work within local government.    
 
4.4.1 Internships 
 
Internships are paid opportunities where the individual is expected to carry out specific work-
related tasks over a set period of time with the aim of providing the individual with 
professional experience and the opportunity to develop skills.  It is recognised that 
internships will normally be for a minimum of six months to a maximum 12 months.  Intern 
arrangements must be funded from existing budgets and the council’s recruitment and 
selection policy and procedure will apply in the usual way.  A job description and person 
specification would be drafted and job evaluation would be undertaken.  Advice should be 
sought from Human Resources.   
 
4.4.2 Work experience opportunities 
 
The council’s work experience opportunities are unpaid opportunities available to all students 
who live in the borough.  It is recognised that these opportunities will normally be for a 
maximum of two consecutive weeks.   
 
Opportunities are available to students at Key Stage 4 (typically aged 14-16 and studying for 
GCSEs) and post 16 year old students.  The council does not apply an upper age limit and 
welcomes applications from mature students. 
 
Requests to complete work experience are made by submitting a complete work experience 
application form.  If an individual is under 18 years of age their parent(s) or guardian(s) need 
to provide consent for the student to undertake the work experience placement.  The 
completed application form is returned to the relevant department or Human Resources for 
assessment of the suitability of the individual and the placement request. 

 
4.5 Secondments 
 
The council uses secondments to enhance service delivery, motivate and develop 
employees, and as a form of personal development that can support career progression. The 
council recognises three types of secondment: 
 

• Internal secondments: a council employee works in a different area of the council 
whilst still retaining their substantive post; 

• Outgoing secondments: a council employee works in a different organisation whilst 
retaining their substantive post with the council; 

Page 11



5 
 

• Incoming secondments: a role at the council is filled by an employee of another 
organisation who remains employed by, and retains their substantive post with, that 
organisation.  

 
Secondments must be in line with the council’s Pay Policy and Procedure. 
 
 
4.6 Acting up opportunities 
 
On occasions staff may complete additional activities that are carried out over and above 
their normal duties and responsibilities. 
 
These opportunities must comply line with the council’s Pay Policy and Procedure. 
 
4.7 Work shadowing 
 
The council recognises that work shadowing can provide an opportunity for employees to 
gain an understanding of a particular role, service area or profession by shadowing staff.   
The duration of the opportunity will depend on what is agreed with the line manager of the 
employee who is requesting the shadowing opportunity and the relevant service. However, it 
is recognised that the placement should not normally exceed two weeks.   
 
Employees who are shadowing do not receive additional remuneration for the activities they 
may perform as part of the opportunity. 
 
4.8 Coaching  

 
Coaching is the term used to describe the learning and development process that is used to 
increase an individual’s performance through support of an coach.  The process can be 
informal or formal and differs from mentoring as it focus on a specific personal or 
professional competence as opposed to general overall development of the individual as 
occurs in mentoring. 
 

4.9 Mentoring 
 
Mentoring is a development process where an experienced individual shares their knowledge 
with someone who is less experienced in a relationship of mutual trust. 
 
A key component of mentoring is for the individual to take primary responsibility for managing 
his or her learning with the help of the mentor.   
 
Brent Council participates in a pan London borough mentoring scheme called MyMentor that 
is accessed via http://www.mymentor.me.uk/. 
 
4.10 Attending conferences and seminars 
 
Employees must request approval in advance from their line manager to attend all 
conferences and seminars.   
 
Costs for attending conferences/seminars are funded from service budgets. 
 
 
 

Page 12



6 
 

 
5. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
5.1 Employees 
 
Employees have a responsibility to: 
 

• participate in learning and development activities that have been identified in 
conjunction with their line manager; 

• keep a record of training undertaken; 
• discuss learning and development needs with their manager; 
• assess the impact of learning and development on their performance; and 
• complete all essential training within the timeframes specified.  

 
5.2 Line managers 
 
Line managers are required to: 
 

• induct new employees/employees new to a post; 
• discuss learning and development needs with individual employees as part of the 

annual performance management process and 1-2-1/Supervision meetings; 
• evaluate the effectiveness of learning and development in their area to demonstrate a 

clear benefit and return on investment through an improvement in services to Brent 
residents; 

• be aware of equality and diversity issues and how they impact on employee 
development opportunities including consulting with disabled staff about their training 
needs and making any reasonable adjustments needed to enable them to be trained; 
and 

• monitor the performance of each employee to identify whether they reach the 
required level of performance. 

 
5.3 Directors, Operational Directors and Heads of Service  
 
Senior Managers are responsible for: 
 

• ensuring this policy is implemented across the council and supports the principles of 
the Investors in People standard.  

• evaluating the return on investment on training conducted in their area through the 
council’s Learning and Development Evaluation Framework. 

 
5.4 Human Resources 
 
Human Resources will be responsible for determining and advising on this procedure.   
 
6. FURTHER ADVICE 
 
Further advice is available from Human Resources. 
 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

Page 15

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	6 Learning and development policy
	Learning and Dev policy appendix

	9 Senior manager restructuring proposals

